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DESCRIBE THE PRESENT AND ORIGINAL (IF KNOWN) PHYSICAL APPEARANCE
Smith Robertson School is a two-story stuccoed brick structure with a flat 

built-up roof hidden by a low parapet. The building was originally U-shaped, and 
in later years the wings were lengthened and finally bridged by the addition of 
kitchen/lunchroom facilities at the rear. Designed in 1929 by the promient Jackson, 
Mississippi, architectural firm of Hull and Malvaney, the building was wrapped 
around part of the previous 1909 school, no part of which is distinguishable to­ 
day. All stylistic statements of this austere structure are reserved for the 
facade, which features a formal three-bay frontispiece of classical elements 
executed in the Art Deco idiom. Four pilasters are widely fluted with fillets. 
The low-relief capitals are composed of volutes evolving from the fillets and 
interlaced with "S" scrolls and stylized leaves. Bays one and three are identical, 
with paired eight-over-eight-sash double-hung windows at both floors, each win­ 
dow trimmed with an ornamental stepped lintel of cast concrete. Infilling the 
top of each bay is a cast concrete spandrel with low relief scrolls, volutes, 
circles, and stylized flowers and foliage. The center bay has the same second- 
floor treatment, but below, the smaller pilasters support a broken-arch pediment 
adorned with stylized leaves, anthemia, and a circular raised panel. The original 
double doors, now missing, were wood, each with long octagonal glazed areas. The 
frontispiece is capped by a simple entablature with a band of volutes in low relief. 
A flight of steps the width of the frontispiece allows access to the building.

The flanking portions of the facade are slightly lower than the frontispiece 
and are divided horizontally by three belt courses, one at the basement level, one 
above the second floor windows, and one finishing the top of the walls. These 
sections, as well as the other exterior faces of the building, are pierced with 
banks of five-window units, all of double-hung eight-over-eight wooden sash, each 
group indicating a classroom space.

Inside, the building is quite simple in both plan and decoration. From a 
rectangular entrance hall open two large classrooms, one on either side, a divided 
symmetrical stair on axis with the entrance, and two twelve-foot-wide corridors 
leading down the inside of the wings to the rear, with classrooms of various sizes 
opening from them. The original 1929 school included twelve classrooms, and eight 
more were added in 1935. In 1941 and 1952 brick and cinderblock lunchroom facili­ 
ties were attached at the rear of the structure. Vacant since 1970, the building 
has been heavily vandalized but is still structurally sound.
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STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE
Smith Robertson Elementary School is significant as the site of the first 

public school building for blacks in Jackson, Mississippi, and the parent school 
for all of Jackson's black community. Named for one of the city's most prominent 
black citizens of the nineteenth century, it memorializes this man, who devoted 
himself to the education of the youth of his race. The later portion of the 
building which remains today is an early and quite sophisticated example of Art 
Deco design in Mississippi.

The beginning of public education for blacks in Jackson was marked by an 
1894 ordinance adopted by the city "providing for the issuance of bonds amounting 
to $7,500.00 'for the erection of a school building for colored children, and 
the payment of the purchase money for the lot on which the said building is to 
be erected.'" Soon after, a wood frame building was constructed on Bloom Street. 
In 1903 it was named for Smith Robertson, a black who had served as alderman from 
the city's fourth ward. Robertson was born a slave in Fayette, Alabama, in January, 
1840. In 1869, he moved to Meridian, Mississippi, where he joined his brother in 
the business of barbering. He came to Jackson in 1874 and opened a barber shop 
near one of the city's most popular hostelries, the Spengler House. Smith Robertson 
soon became widely respected and was featured as one of Jackson's outstanding citi­ 
zens in an 1890s booklet compiled to advertise the city's advantages and attractions 
In 1893, he was elected, "without any solicitation on his part," to the office of 
city alderman, a position he held until his death on December 30, 1899.

At a time when popular support for black education in Mississippi was drasti­ 
cally on the wane, it was through his urging and influence that the city fathers 
moved to establish this school. As further testimony to his efforts on behalf 
of his race, he was appointed by the city government in 1897 a trustee for the 
school which was later to bear his name. He held a seat on that board for two 
years.

Since its establishment, the Smith Robertson School has been popularly re­ 
garded as the "mother school" by Jackson's black community. The original school 
building burned on January 3, 1909, "but was immediately rebuilt and opened again 
on September 20, 1909." The general contractor for this reconstruction was C. H. 
Carrol!. The new building was considered to be "a great improvement over the one 
destroyed by fire, but was not yet really large enough" (Dalehite, p. 117). Sub­ 
sequent alterations and additions to that building, and the construction of a
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later front portion and facade in 1929, have given the building its Art Deco 
appearance. Other building programs added classrooms in 1935 and lunchroom fa­ 
cilities in 1941 and 1952.

Designed by the Jackson architectural firm of Hull and Malvaney, the 1929 
facade of the building is of great interest with its high-style Art Deco front­ 
ispiece applied to what is otherwise a nondescript, almost industrial building. 
Of the buildings designed in this idiom locally, only a handful survive. Emmett 
Hull, well known for public and private buildings all over the state, produced as 
up-to-date a design for the new Smith Robertson School as he did for his upper-class 
clientele. This action constituted a significant break in the ideology that high- 
style design should be allowed only for those who could afford it. For 1929 Missis­ 
sippi, the school building makes a significant architectural and social statement.

In order to achieve balanced racial integration of the Jackson public schools, 
Smith Robertson became one of nine city schools closed by an order of the U.S. Fifth 
Circuit Court of Appeals, June 22, 1971, since which time it has remained vacant. A 
new inner-city traffic loop will bring about the demolition of the 1941/1952 lunch­ 
room additions (not included in the National Register nomination). The remainder 
of the building is under consideration for adaptive reuse by the City of Jackson 
as a multi-service community center for the black neighborhood surrounding it.
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